
ELECTRONICALLY BASED 
MINUTES UTAH DENTIST & 

DENTAL HYGIENIST MEETING 
April 17 , 2020 9:00 A .M. 
Salt Lake C ity, UT 84 114 

CONVENED: 9:01 A.M. 

DOPL STAFF PRESENT: 
Bureau Manager: Larry Marx 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Leonard R. Aste, DDS Chai rperson 
Kath leen Harris , RDH 
Daniel Poulson , DD S 
Melinda L. Reich, RDH 
Shannon Sorensen , DDS 

GUESTS: 
Mark Chri stensen 

ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 
Call Meeting to Order 

Dr. Aste called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. 

Read and Approve March 6, 2019 Minutes (0:05) 
This item was tabled for the June meeting. 

DISCUSSION: 
REGIONAL EXAMS (0:06) 

ADJOURNED: 11 :38 A.M. 

Board Secretary: Lisa Martin 

Bryon Ta lbot, DDS 
Gloria Mi ley 
Jason Chandl er, DMD 
Ron Bowen, DDS 

Dr. Aste read a statement concerning changes to regional exams due to closures in 
response to Covid-19. Dr. Aste stated the patient based portion of regional exams are 
not possible at this time. Dr. Aste stated the simulation exam doesn't have a perio 
portion available without a live patient. Dr. Aste stated WREB has proposed waiving 
the clinical portion of the perio portion of the exam. 

Dr. Poulson stated CDCA is working on solutions however they have not made any 
specific licensing exemption requests. Dr. Poulson stated CRDTS has requested 
waiving the clinical portion as well. 

Dr. Aste stated there may be an additional issue of supply for simulation exams. 

Dr. Poulson sta ted the concern that the ava ilable manufactured teeth are similar to 
those used in the first two years of ed ucation. 

1 



Dr. C hri stense n confirmed th e teeth ava il a bl e do not have carries o r pulp . Dr. 
Christensen s ta ted he has provided th e Di v is ion with an informative Powe rPoint on 
th e s uppli es available. Dr. C hri stense n rev iewed the options tha t WR EB is 
propo s in g to adjust to th e c hall enges of Covid -1 9. Dr. Christensen stated so me 
sta tes are waiving portion s of th e exa m, whi le other s tates are not makin g a ny 
adju stme nts to exa m requireme nts. 

Ms. Harris stated there are components of perio in the CPT portion of the exam. 

Dr. Aste asked about the timelines for the alternative exam availability. 

Dr . C hri s tensen stated both the dental and de ntal hyg iene adaptations should be 
available by ear ly June. 

Dr. Aste asked the Board for their input on accepting a simulated exam rather than the 
live patient exam. 

Dr. Bowen stated one concern is that the students have already paid to take their 
chosen regional exam. 

Dr. Chandler stated his support for a simulated exam; however, the preference would 
be for a temporary license until the live patient test is available. 

Ms. Miley stated concern that there isn't a perio component to the simulated exam. 

Ms. Harris stated support for the simulated exam. 

Dr. Engar stated the support of a temporary license to ensure the live patient exam 
portion is completed at some point. Dr. Engar stated the simulated exam is better 
than not allowing testing . 

Dr. Aste stated as the majority of the Board is in support of accepting the simulated 
exam during this time of Covid-19 changes. 

Dr. Talbot asked if they would have to retake the entire exam to obtain the full license. 

Ms . Overfelt stated the CDCA 's OSCE includes perio components and will be 
willing to offer the perio component a t no charge. Ms. Overfelt stated in discussion 
with several state boards they are findin g the perio is being waived for several 
states. 

The Board agreed that waiving the perio portion for dental exam this year will be an 
acceptable action due to the current health environment. 

Dr. Aste asked about the dental hygiene exam. 

2 



The Board agreed th a t waiving th e perio portion for dental exam this yea r wi ll be an 
acceptab le action due to the current health environmen t. 

Dr. Aste as ked about rhe dental hygiene exa m . 

Ms. Reich sta ted ta king an OSCE exam that is availa ble Ms. Reich stated the 
importance of taking a Jive clinical exam when availa ble. 

The Board ag reed dental hygienists may qualify for a temporary license hav in g 
completed an OSCE exam and must complete th e clin ical exam once avai lable. 

Mr·. Marx stated the Division has created an application for a temporary license which 
would require applicants to submit everythin g for the standard li cense with the 
except ion of:.the r egi<;mal exa m. 

f>i-. Bowen mad e a motion recomm endi ng accepting a simulated reg ional exam to 
q ualify for a license for this graduating class on ly. 
M s. Harris seconded the motion. 
T he Board motion passed unanim ously. 

TEMPORARY LICENSE This item was discussed with the previ ous item. 
Dr. Bowen made a motion recomm ending makin g a temporary license be available to 
dentists in accordance with Utah code 58-1-303. 
Dr. Reich seconded the motion. 
The Board motion passed with eight in favor and one against. 

Ms. Reich made a motion recommending approval of a temporary license for denta l 
hygienist upon graduation with the requirement to complete the next available regional 
exam . 
Dr. Talbot seconded the motion. 
T he Board motion passed unanimously. 

NF.XT SCHEDULED MEETING: JUNE 5, 2020 

ADJOURN : 
M eetin g adjou rn ed at 11 :38 A.M. 

Note : These minutes are not intended to be a verbatim t ranscript hut arc intended to 
r ecord the sig nificant features of th e business conducted in this meeting. Discussed 
item s arc not necessarily shown in th e chronologi al order they occurred. 

Date Appr<wed 

A/ Y1 ~;;>yf, -k_ ~ -D ~ 
(ss) - --+--_ _ __ v __ _..,,_ _ ___ _ 

Chai ·person, Utah Dentist 
Lice sing Board 

3 

Dental Hygienist 



Ms. Reich stated taking an OSCE exam that is available Ms. Reich stated the 
importance of taking a live clinical exam when available. 

The Board agreed dental hygienists may qualify for a temporary license having 
completed an OSCE exam and must complete the clinical exam once available. 

Mr. Marx sta ted the Division has created an application for a temporary license which 
would require applicants to submit everything for the standard license with the 
exception of the regional exam. 

Dr. Bowen made a motion recomm ending accepting a simulated regional exam to 
qualify for a license for this graduati ng class only. 
Ms. Harris seco nded the motion. 
The Board motion passed unanimously. 

TEMPORARY LICENSE This item was di scussed with the previous item. 
Dr. Bowen made a motion recom mending making a temporary license be available to 
dentists in accordance with Utah code 58-1-303. 
Dr. Reich seconded the motion. 
The Board motion passed with eight in favor and one against. 

Ms. Reich made a motion recommending approval of a temporary license for dental 
hygienist upon graduation with the requirement to complete the next available regional 
exam. 
Dr. Talbot seconded the motion. 
The Board motion passed unanimously. 

NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING: JUNE 5, 2020 

ADJOURN: 
Meeting adjourned at 11 :38 A.M. 

Note: These minutes are not intended to be a verbatim transcript but are intended to 
record the significant features of the business conducted in this meeting. Discussed 
items are not necessarily shown in the chronological order they occurred. 

Date Approved 

Date Approved 

(ss) _______________ _ 

Chairperson, Utah Dentist & Dental Hygienist 
Licensing Board 

~LYk= B:: Manager, DOPL 

3 






